Parish Council Meeting to be held at the Over Kellet Village Hall on Tuesday, 13th June 2023, commencing at 7.15pm

<u>A G E N D A</u>

1. Apologies.

- 2. Minutes of the Annual Meeting held on Tuesday, 16th May 2023 (attached).
- 3. Declarations of Interest.
- **4. To elect officers and representatives on outside bodies and groups** for the municipal year 2023/24:
 - a) Trustees of Thomas Withers Charity
 - b) Lancashire Association of Local Councils
 - c) Quarry Liaison Committee
 - d) Village Hall Committee
 - e) Lengthsman liaison
 - f) The Kellets Twinning Association
 - g) Allotments Association
 - h) Emergency Planning Group
- **5. Planning Applications.** To consider and comment on the following new planning application consultations received since the last meeting.

Application No:	Description
23/00570/FUL	Demolition of existing rear extension and erection of two storey rear extension with construction of dormer extension to the side, erection of single storey extensions to front and both side elevations, creation of a flue, creation of additional hard standing and landscaping, installation of a sewage treatment plant. Havelock House, Borwick Road, Capernwray.
	Deadline for comments – 17 th June 2023
23/00580/AD	Agricultural determination for the erection of 5 silos.LowerAddington Farm, Birkland Barrow Road, Nether Kellet.Deadline for comments – 5th June 2023

- **6. Planning Authority Decisions.** To receive an update on previously considered applications. Clerk's report attached.
- 7. Current Issues. To consider progress on implementing the Parish Plan.

- 8. **Public Discussion and Update Reports.** To adjourn the meeting for a period of public discussion and to provide 'information only' updates on activities in recent weeks. (Note: Any matters needing a 'decision' will be considered as an agenda item at a future meeting).
 - 1. Public discussion
 - 2. Clerk's report on activities and correspondence since the last meeting
 - 3. Members updates and reports since the last meeting, including:

1) LALC	2) Quarries	3) Village Hall
4) Lengthsman	5) Other Matters	

- 4. Report of District and County Councillors
- 9. Payments. To authorise payment of accounts. Report attached.
- **10.** To confirm the **date and time of the next meeting.**

Derek Whiteway Parish Clerk 7th June 2023 Tel: 01524 64908 Email: <u>clerk@overkelletpc.org</u>

Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Parish Council, held at the Over Kellet Village Hall on Tuesday, 16th May 2023 at 7.15pm

Present:Councillor Graham Agnew – Chairman
Councillors David Burns, Josie Candlin, Derek Johnson and Joan Littlewood
County Councillor Phillippa Williamson and City Councillor James Sommerville
Derek Whiteway (Parish Clerk)

In attendance: 9 members of the public.

23/011 Welcome to New Councillors

The Chairman introduced and warmly welcomed the Parish's newly elected Councillors: David Burns, Josie Candlin and Joan Littlewood.

23/012 Apologies For Absence:

Apologies were received from Councillors William Candlin and Liz Moody.

23/013 Chairman's Annual Report for 2022/23

The Chairman's report for 2022/23 is to be published in Over Kellet View.

23/014 Minutes of The Meeting Held on Tuesday, 11th April 2023

Resolved: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Parish Council, held on Tuesday, 11th April 2023 be approved and signed

23/015 Election of Officials 2023/24

Election of Chair. It was proposed by Councillor Josie Candlin, seconded by Councillor Burns, and carried unanimously that Councillor Agnew be appointed Chairman for 2023/24.

Resolved: That Councillor Agnew be appointed as Chairman of the Parish Council for the 2023/24 municipal year.

Election of Vice-Chair. It was proposed by Councillor Littlewood, seconded by Councillor Agnew, and carried unanimously that Councillor Johnson be appointed as Vice-Chairman for 2023/24.

Resolved: That Councillor Johnson be appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Parish Council for the 2023/24 municipal year.

The Chairman authorised the Clerk to electronically sign his Acceptance of Office.

23/016 Declarations of Interest

No further declarations or changes to existing declarations were made.

23/017 Election of Officers and Representatives on Outside Bodies and Groups

Councillors agreed to defer this item to the June meeting of the Council

23/018 Lancaster City Council Election, 4th May 2023 The Chairman welcomed newly elected City Councillor James Somerville to the meeting. submitted the draft AGAR for approval. Councillor Sommerville advised that he and fellow City Councillor Sarah McGowan were looking forward to representing the Halton with Aughton and Kellet Ward and working with the Parish Councils. 23/019 Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR) 2022/23 The Clerk submitted the draft AGAR for approval. The Internal Auditor's report was included in the AGAR, the auditor's opinion being that expected arrangements were in place. No issues or recommendations had been raised. The Clerk advised that in his opinion, all expected governance arrangements set out in Section 1 of the AGAR were in place and the statement could be approved. Section 2 set out the Accounting Statements for 2022/23, which the Clerk also recommended for approval. The Clerk reported that the Council is eligible to claim exemption from external audit upon submission of a duly approved and signed Exemption Certificate. The deadline for submission of the completed certificate is 30th June 2023. The Clerk therefore recommended that the AGAR be approved, and that the Council claim exemption from external audit, with the statutory period of public inspection being set as Monday, 19th June to Friday, 28th July 2023 inclusive. The Clerk also presented a more detailed report into the Council's final accounts for 2022/23. Councillors asked the Clerk a number of questions about the accounts. The Clerk advised that he had produced an outline cash flow forecast for 2023/24 and concluded that £6,000 could be transferred from the Council's Current Account into the interest-bearing Instant Access Account. The Clerk also advised that, following the May election, the Council only had two authorized signatories to its bank accounts and should have at least one more. Councillors resolved that Councillor William Candlin should be added as a further signatory **Resolved:** (1) That the Internal Auditor's report is accepted and noted. (2) That Section 1 of the AGAR – the Annual Governance Statement 2022/23, is approved. (3) That Section 2 of the AGAR – Accounting Statements 2022/23, is approved. (4) That the Council claims exemption from the limited assurance audit and submits the required Exemption Certificate. That the period for the exercise of public rights to inspect the accounts is set as (5) Monday 19th June to Friday 28th July 2023 inclusive. That the Council transfers £6,000 from the Current to the Instant Access Account. (6) That Councillor William Candlin be added as an authorised signatory to the Council's (7) bank account.

23/020 Risk Register Review 2023/24

The Clerk reported into the results of a review of the Council's Risk Register. Existing risks had been updated with any additional mitigations adopted since the last review. One previously 'high' risk, relating to Councillor vacancies could now be reduced to 'low'.

The Clerk used the update to remind Councillors that the current Parish Plan expires in March 2024 and recommended that the Councillors consider this year whether and how they might wish to replace or refresh the Plan.

Some other minor amendments were agreed.

Resolved: That, subject to the agreed amendments, the draft Risk Register for 2023/24 is approved.

23/021 Review of Council Policies and Procedures

The Clerk reported into the results of an annual review of the Council's Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, Information Governance Policies and Complaints Procedure. The Clerk advised that the documents remained up to date and fit for purpose and no changes were recommended.

Resolved: That the existing policies and documents be approved without amendment.

23/022 New Planning Consultations

The following planning applications were considered. It was resolved to respond as set out against each individual case.

Application No:	Description	
23/00458/FUL	Retrospective application for the erection of a single storey rear extension. 7 Craggs View, Over Kellet	
	Resolved: No comments submitted	
23/0051/TPO	Fell T1-Oak and T2 – Ash. Cragg House, Kirkby Lonsdale Road, Over Kellet. Resolved: No comments submitted	
22/01328/REM	 Reserved matters application for the approval of layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping following planning permission 22/00562/VCN for the development of 8,397sqm of employmen (Use Classes B1(c), B2 and B8). Land Adjacent to Porsche Centre Stakes, 1 Electric Drive, Carnforth. Resolved: No comments submitted 	

Application No:	Description	
23/00525/F	UL Erection of a single storey side extension, construction of raised decking to the rear and installation of solar panels to the front elevation. Parklands View, Borwick Road, Capernwray. Resolved: No comments submitted	
23/00509/F	UL Erection of two storey side extension, construction of hip to gable extension, construction of raised decking, installation of external steps, erection of a carport and erection of an erection of outbuilding to create ancillary accommodation in association with Old Watermill. Old Watermill, Capernwray Road, Capernwray. Resolved: No comments submitted	
23/00518/F	UL Erection of a dwelling (C3) with associated access. Land At Grid Reference E352250 N470040, Kirkby Lonsdale Road, Over Kellet. Councillors discussed and expressed some concerns over the impact of an additional property access point at this location, but concluded that any issues should be addressed by the County Council Highways' response to the consultation.	
	Resolved: No comments submitted	
3 Update on	Previous Planning Applications	
The Clerk p	resented a report updating the status of previous planning applications.	
retrospectiv Field West sent to the	noted the approval of planning application 22/00662/FUL - Part e application for the widening of an existing access and erection of a gate of Woodlands View, Over Kellet. Councillors agreed that a letter should be City Council and developers asking that the approved plans (including the currently built gateway) be fully implemented.	
	That a letter be sent to the City Council and developers asking that the plans (including changes to the currently built gateway) be fully ted.	
4 Current Iss	ues	
(1) Waste	Bin on B6254 Kellet Road	
The Chairman reported that he had contacted Lancaster City Council asking that		

The Chairman reported that he had contacted Lancaster City Council asking that the waste bin at the B6254 lay-by be properly secured.

(2) Request from Eagles Head Landlord

Councillors discussed a request from the Landlord of the Eagles Head to site an A-Frame style advertising board on the Village Green.

Following discussion, it was proposed by Councillor Littlewood and seconded by Councillor Josie Candlin, that the Council agrees in principle to the request, subject to details of the advertising board and its deployment being agreed with the Landlord. Four Councillors voted in favour and one against the proposal.

Resolved: That that the Council agrees in principle to the request, subject to details of the advertising board and its deployment being agreed with the Landlord.

23/025 Adjournment For Public Discussion and Information Only Updates:

Reports From Members of The Public:

1. Community Asset Designation

A resident commented that the Parish currently had no registered community assets and asked whether this might be considered as part of any future review of the Parish Plan.

Action: The Clerk will research the process, implications and potential benefits to the Parish of designating of Community Assets.

2. Roadside Parking at Cockle Hill

A resident reported that levels of car parking on the pavement at Cockle Hill, opposite Top Green, were creating increased risk to pedestrians and road users alike. Following discussion, it was agreed that Lancashire County Council Highways should be asked to reconsider the area.

Action: The Clerk will liaise with County Councillor Williamson to request a review of the area by County Highways.

3. Potholes

A resident reported a number of potholes on the Nether Kellet Road. County Councillor Williamson advised that potholes and other issues could now be reported via the 'Love Clean Streets' app.

Action: The Clerk will draft an item for OK View promoting the availability and use of the 'Love Clean Streets' app.

4. Footpath FP0124009

A resident enquired about progress regarding the condition of footpath FP0124009 linking Nether Kellet Road with Kirkby Lonsdale Road. Councillors discussed issues concerning the surface of the footpath and the bordering vegetation.

Action: The Council will liaise with County Councillor Williamson to seek an assessment of the footpath surface and with the Lengthsman regarding any overgrowing vegetation.

Clerk's Report:

5. Public Bench on B6254 Kellet Road.

The Clerk reported that the new bench was now on order and should be installed soon.

6. Sustainable Settlements Survey

The Council is participating in a review by Lancaster City Council of its Sustainable Settlement Report produced in 2018 as part of the Local Plan.

7. Picnic Benches for Church Bank Green

The Clerk confirmed that a resident had offered to provide funding for the purchase and installation of benches on Church Bank green space.

Action: The Council will proceed with plans to purchase and install two picnic benches on the Church Bank green space.

Members' Reports:

- 8. LALC. Nothing to report.
- **9.** Quarries. Councillor Johnson advised that the public consultation event into proposed future development of the quarries (planned to take place during June/July 2023) would be promoted in OK View.
- **10. Allotments.** Nothing to report.
- 11. Village Hall. Nothing further to report.
- 12. Lengthsman. Nothing further to report.
- **13. Other Matters.** Nothing further to report.

City and County Councillors' Reports:

No further reports

Payee & Detail			£
Over Kellet Village Hall	Hire of Hall on 11 th April '23 Bus Shelter Rent 2022/23	£14.00 £10.00	24.00
Mike Ashton. Lengthsman Services, April 2023			203.10
Dawn Allen – Internal Audit 2022/23		68.00	
BHIB – Insurance Premium 2023/24			591.33
Derek Whiteway – Parish Clerk salary and expenses, April 2023			223.52
HMRC – PAYE deductions, April 2023		54.60	

Resolved: That the above accounts are approved for payment

23/027 DATE & TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next Council meeting is to be held on Tuesday, 13th June 2023 at the Over Kellet Village Hall, commencing at 7.15pm.

The meeting closed at 9:10pm

Clerk of the Council

Chairman

Date:

Agenda Item: 6

Planning Application Comments & Decisions

Update for May – June 2023

Application Number / Description Part A – Applications decided since	Parish Council Comment	Planning Authority Decision / Status
23/0051/TPO - Fell T1-Oak and T2 – Ash. Cragg House, Kirkby Lonsdale Road, Over Kellet.	No comments submitted (Minute 23/004)	Application Permitted
23/00053/FUL - Demolition single storey dwelling, erection of two storey dwelling (C3) and installation of a package of treatment plant. Pastordale Farm, Kellet Lane, Over Kellet.	Response submitted suggesting that the building's design should be more sympathetic to the rural setting. (Minute 23/004)	Application Permitted
23/00005/HAS (Householder Planning Appeal) - Erection of a part single part two storey rear/side extension. 8 Church Bank, Over Kellet.	No opportunity given to submit comments at this stage.	Appeal Allowed

Part B – Undecided Applications

20/01220/VCN: Outline application for the erection of up to 15 dwellings and creation of a new access (pursuant to the variation of condition 2 on approved application 16/01572/OUT to amend the red edge of the approved location plan). Land South East of Church Bank, Church Bank, Over Kellet.

A response was submitted objecting to all three inter-related the applications covering the following areas of objection (Min 20/083):

- a) ground conditions and drainage issues;
- b) ecological impacts;
- c) traffic and access impacts; and
- d) housing need in the village.

A letter was submitted to the City Council expressing concerns over the way in which the development and applications are being progressed and the potential impacts of current plans on groundwater levels at the site. (Minute 21/032)

Part B – Undecided Applications

22/00237/CCC and LCC/2022/0006 County Council Consultation request for the variation of condition 1 of planning permission LCC/2016/0061 to allow for continued operation of the concrete batching plant until 21 February 2034, with all buildings, plant and associated equipment being removed and the site restored by 21 February 2035. Dunald Mill Quarry, Long Dales Lane, Nether Kellet.

Resolved: No comments to be submitted (Minute 21/118)

22/00034/ENF Appeal against enforcement notice for operation of haulage business. Field At Grid Reference 351950 471570, Netherbeck, Carnforth.

Resolved: A response is to be submitted expressing the Council's consistent objection to the development of a haulage business at this site, reiterating concerns over flooding and including satellite images illustrating changes to the site over the past 10 years. (Minute 22/047)

22/01203/FUL Change of use of open space for the siting of 9 caravans with associated internal road, parking spaces, hardstanding and drainage and construction of a pond. McCarthy Caravan Parks, Castle View Park, Borwick Road, Capernwray.

Resolved: No comments to be submitted (Minute 22/060)

22/01328/REM Reserved matters application for the approval of layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping following planning permission 22/00562/VCN for the development of 8,397sqm of employment (Use Classes B1(c), B2 and B8). Land Adjacent To Porsche Centre South Lakes 1 Electric Drive Carnforth

Resolved: No comments to be submitted (Minute 22/075)

23/00059/FUL Erection of workshop, relocation of carpark including level alterations and associated drainage. Porsche Centre South Lakes, 1 Electric Drive, Carnforth.

Resolved. No comments to be submitted(Minute 22/105)

23/00458/FUL Retrospective application for the erection of a single storey rear extension. 7 Craggs View, Over Kellet

Resolved: No comments submitted (Minute 23/022)

22/01328/REM Reserved matters application for the approval of layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping following planning permission 22/00562/VCN for the development of 8,397sqm of employment (Use Classes B1(c), B2 and B8). Land Adjacent to Porsche Centre South Lakes, 1 Electric Drive, Carnforth.

Resolved: No comments submitted (Minute 23/022)

23/00525/FUL Erection of a single storey side extension, construction of raised decking to the rear and installation of solar panels to the front elevation. Parklands View, Borwick Road, Capernwray.

Resolved: No comments submitted (Minute 23/022)

23/00509/FUL Erection of two storey side extension, construction of hip to gable extension, construction of raised decking, installation of external steps, erection of a carport and erection of an erection of outbuilding to create ancillary accommodation in association with Old Watermill. Old Watermill, Capernwray Road, Capernwray.

Resolved: No comments submitted (Minute 23/022)

Part B – Undecided Applications

23/00518/FUL Erection of a dwelling (C3) with associated access. Land At Grid Reference E352250 N470040, Kirkby Lonsdale Road, Over Kellet.

Resolved: No comments submitted (Minute 23/022)

Parish Council Meeting, 13th June 2023

Agenda Item 9 – Payments for Authorisation

Payee & Detail	£
Over Kellet Village Hall Hire of Hall on 16 th May 2023	14.00
Mike Ashton. Lengthsman Services, May 2023	tbc
Glasdon Ltd – Bench for Kellet Road	1,000.80
Derek Whiteway – Parish Clerk salary and expenses, May 2023	214.50
HMRC – PAYE deductions, May 2023	50.80